

NC 0017962 0

TZ1821

National College of Art and Design

Faculty of Design Department of Fashion and Textiles

A CRITICAL ANALYSIS OF THE PRESENT SITUATION OF THE WOOLLEN AND WORSTED INDUSTRY IN IRELAND

by

JOANNE NOLAN

Submitted to the Faculty of History of Art and Design and Complementary Studies in Candidacy for the Degree of Bachelor of Textiles Design

Nadacci College of Art and Design

Paculty of Design Dealerment of Pachton and Taxifes

A CRITICAL ANALYSIS CRITHE PRESIMIN SITUATION OF THE WOOLLEN AND WORSTED MOLDS' PY NY RELAND

buomitted in the Facinty of History of Ard Deston and Complementary Fradio In Condidant for the Depiste of Bachalor of Textites Derign

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to those who helped me in the compilation of this thesis:

• Gerry Walker, my thesis tutor, for his guidance and advice throughout the year.

- Mr. Jonathan Hackett, Managing Director of Botany Weaving Mill.
- Sallie O' Sullivan
- Michelle Dunne
- Diarmuid Doran
- FAS
- IDA
- Central Statistics Office
- Ilac Centre Library and Staff

vecule has for iske the opportunity to endress by sectors which is to those who strike one is the coelected of the decide

ter est loof arms i palate brand statut tat international and an and a statut arms and

and provide standing the second part and the second standing of the second standing of the second standing of t

en velar Costal

Statud alignetic M

man Counts &

CHAN Y

The last

noi/O concilers lannes) a

Nerd one yreadd en of bee

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE NUMBER

List of Plates	3
Introduction	4
Chapter One:	6
History of the Woollen and Worsted Industry and its development over time.	
Chapter Two:	17
Botany Weaving Mill, a case study.	
Chapter Three:	40
The Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry in relation to European and World Textile Markets.	
Chapter Four:	50
Future for the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry and the factors that could influence the direction the industry will take.	
Conclusion	63
Bibliography	67



LIST OF PLATES

PAGE NUMBER

Fig. 2.1	Organisational Chart of Botany Weaving Mill.	19
Fig. 2.2	Geographical sales breakdown of Botany Weaving Mill.	27
Fig. 2.3	Warping area of the mill.	30
Fig. 2.4	Close-up of reed where yarn is threaded through onto warping machine.	31
Fig. 2.5	Dornier Jacquard loom.	32
Fig. 2.6	Back view of Jacquard loom.	33
Fig. 2.7	Greige Perch inspection.	34
Fig. 2.8	Finished goods inspection.	35
Fig. 2.9	Finished rolls ready for shipping.	36
Fig. 2.10	Storage racks.	37
Fig. 2.11	Examples of upholstery fabrics.	38
Fig. 2.12	Examples of airline fabrics.	39
Fig. 3.1	EU production, consumption and trade in textiles.	42
Fig. 3.2	EU employment in textiles.	42
Fig. 4.1	Value of Training Support Scheme grants to textiles.	58
Fig. 4.2	Employment forecast for textile sector.	59



INTRODUCTION

My choice of subject for this thesis stems from the fact that my time as an Irish weave student is drawing to a close. However the opportunities presented to me by way of employment in Ireland are virtually non-existent. This pushed me to examine the present situation of the woollen and worsted industry and what future, if any, it holds.

The Irish woollen and worsted Industry has often been regarded as an industry with little hope of survival. Indeed, it has experienced a very turbulent past and despite the many constraints underpinning its development, the industry's ultimate survival will depend on the people who are involved within it.

The main objective of this thesis is to analyse the situation of this industry in Ireland to examine key questions and the recommendations provided concerning Irelands apparent inability to produce a thriving woollen and worsted industry. This thesis does not have concrete answers regarding the future of this industry but it does try to provide an understanding of the reasons for it's decline and it present situation.

Chapter One - Chapter one of this research reviews the history of the industry and how it has evolved to its present form.

MORDEROSTER

(4) Crows of subject for this faces or a configuration to a fact that ray from search the content of the fact of the second s

31-4 Million with A contracted bedoments in a offers black regionaed calles interacy with risk million or analyset. Index 2 Million experimences in any targatisetty ner new despite on much emostrelate reals reals remaining its basis, you with a contracted of all matter successful dependences and remaining its basis, you with a contracted of all matter successful dependences on the residerence with a contracted with a first matter successful dependences in a material of seven of the states of the dependence of the theory is to material of the residerence of the dependence of the theory is to material of the residerence of the dependence of the theory is to material of the residerence of the residerence of the dependence of the theory is to material of the residerence.

stend to any the key quartering and the report randomy gravity of opportunity severals quartering with the report random gravity and a preserve addition of the second several and the contract and antering without and a preserve the contract with the date of the provide contract and antering of the tell calls from the contract addes the to provide contract and antering of the means the tell calls dract and the rest of the provide contract and antering of the means the tell calls the contract and the tell and the provide contract and the tell calls dract and the rest of the provide contract and the second and the tell calls dract and the rest of the provide contract and the second and the tell calls dract and the rest of the provide contract and the second and the tell calls dract and the rest of the provide contract and the second and the tell calls dract and the rest of tell the provide contract and the tell calls dract and the tell calls dract and tell and tell the tell calls dract and tell calls tell calls dract and tell calls dract dract and tell calls dract dra

> u (notain one content till som och to som hanged Cl names i uten för att till som till till som tillar tatta för att som

Chapter Two - This chapter provides a case study of one success story, that of Botany Weaving Mill.

Chapter Three - This chapter examines the Irish Woollen and Worsted industry in relation to the European and World textile markets.

Chapter Four - This chapter will look to the future of the Irish Woollen and Worsted industry and the many factors that have been recommended and could influence the direction the industry will take.

We sum interview examines the lifer substreak and We sum indextry or characterized to the Burdpress and

i nig on open will topk to the functe of the use Machine cast eveneration models, and the cast charge designed topen recommissions and occurs interacts

and the platies of manager of

CHAPTER ONE

History of the Woollen and Worsted Industry and its development over time.



CHAPTER ONE

The woollen industry is by far one of the oldest in the world and had its origin in the provision of a ready means of enabling mankind to clothe itself from sheep's wool which was converted by spinning into yarn and then weaving it into fabric form. The whole process of rearing sheep for meat, the collection and sale of their wool and its manufacture into fabric became one of the most significant forms of early economic activities in Europe.

The history of weaving in Ireland is also a long one. Society in early Ireland was family dominated, rural and almost nomadic. Existence was pastoral; cattle and sheep were wealth and provided not only food but also the raw material for leather and for weaving.

It was the Normans on their arrival in 1169, and their descendants, with their organised towns and cities that allowed the development of weaving in another direction. Evidence in the 13th century of tuckmills to give a finish to the cloth, is evidence of the beginnings of trade and of an organisation of weaving that was not totally domestic.

More recently, when describing the development of the Irish woollen and worsted industry, it is useful to place it within the context of the general manufacturing industry. In reviewing the woollen and worsted industry as a complete unit within

3. Na woolfs - Industry is by fire and or the mostler line world was hold as cruce in the proventim of a reacty material of earticles; monitored to the fitself evaluates a wool which was converted to submong with yatefrance for reactive a line terrary form the church structure or converted as a first metric. The constraint is into terrary form at the metricles's a modern of constraints are determent. The constraint for the second structure form at the metricles's a modern of constraints are determent. The constraint form is the at the metricles's a modern of the second one of the most fills are pathological to the second at the metricles's a modern of the second one of the error of the second second of the second second of the second of the second one of the second second of the second second of the second second of the second of the second one of the second second of the second second of the second second of the second of the second of the second second of the second of the second second second of the second sec

The trations in subdying to helping it also a firm one). Such and easy archited was similar in reaction, runal and strausing reaction. Exceloring was fusional (or) the deal cheer such reaction and provided not any filter but also the sourcestance of the lefter and for sub-ving

n and the bloches is a the camera for 1 (69,2nd (take do searcante) with their organised towns and unless their addivisit the devisionment of memory in another direction. If educes the 10th contury of tectorific to goes, it is to be to the organise or c**erce of** the beginnengy of fracts and at an organism to devision to the second rate was not conditioned to categorie the fracts and at an organism of the context of was to be the test was not

(4) In contrast, and an and a lighter development on the neuron offers worker development, in a contrast worker development of the contrast of the contrast

the manufacturing industry, we can highlight many of the decisions that affected the direction of the entire industry and those that have contributed to its decline.

Within this chapter, I will review the performance of the Irish woollen and worsted industry since World War 1 and examine relevant internal and external factors that have affected its performance to date.

The woollen and worsted industry in Ireland expanded at an unprecedented rate during the course of the 1914-1918 war, its output by value practically increasing fourfold during those years. The demand for military fabrics exceeded the reasonable capacity of the industry to supply. Following the war and the withdrawal of this artificial demand, the industry experienced decline until tariff protection of the domestic market was first introduced in 1925, with a tariff rate of 25% being imposed upon imported fabrics and yarns.

The imposition of tariffs, apart from the protection of the uneconomic output from Irish mills had two other effects: -

 It encouraged the setting up in Ireland of a number of commission yarn spinning operations and finishing and dyeing operations. Actually, many British industries set up facilities in Ireland to circumvent the high tariffs and to continue to supply the Irish market by operating within Ireland.

the monoclastical optimistics we can inighted a name of the maties of the meaned. Free american of the orbital address and these there can advertises of the construction of the construction.

Multicle and chapters in with movement by precision encourse of this finals wouth an end indentified industry of non-vitation lines in the countries enforcement integrals and approximate lands in the reacted by effect to pill formations to defende.

(In end its order and the state of the instance of expension at an angle order in the state of the end of the state of the instance of the

The report of the first of a spectrum term the protection of the instant of the upper first in here mills have to place encode:

Discributegas (The Betekry octor trained accordination of a consistence and according material actor and 5 extract that (Caling opposition of Score).
Househice set up for Rise in train of Birman according to pays to file and to consiste to sect or the Historica in training or according to within the and to Also, Irish mills found it advantageous to integrate backward further into spinning, dyeing and finishing in an effort to become independent of outside raw material suppliers.

Such a protected market allowed the development of a wider variety of fabrics based on small production runs with little sophistication in design and colouring. It became common for mills to copy foreign designs, which, prior to the imposition of tariffs would have been imported.

In 1959, two economists, (Fitzgerald and Quinn) conducted a pilot study on the power-weaving sector of the industry. Their brief was to examine the structure of the industry and its cost competitiveness, and to highlight what steps might be taken to position the industry better to overcome the effect of free trade.

Their principle recommendation was for the immediate restructuring of the industry even before other issues requiring attention such as management techniques, product policy, design input and development of the marketing function.

The restructuring and rationalisation of output as outlined by Fitzgerald and Quinn was necessary for a number of reasons. These being:

 Asso, festionelle factorité advantationes to foiente le four manifications faites suproduct and foitbing in an effection suproduct d'agéndour of humons.

Envoy a proteorud meneti sBowed ana develop i mulof e a side vanatu of fatures bi techo i valak poetastion i u civilă artio aceticaria courul designi vino colourăno i a konare commos fatimita lo oco estre un desiguis, vineri, provinci i u consular ef conferenciari cum a carimanano.

(i) 1.9 Control with the control to the control of the regularity of a contracted to office at the second of the control of the state of the stat

Treshandrich die een eenmenderfoor Waar Karitha oor watere resmunalierig af die braken meen bekoment ook verwaar die eensprechtering ander 10 maan voor te direct ha wee kult antibee deeligt mote een reinstaarde ook te inaarkaling feredeer

- The small size of the domestic market was forcing mills to operate short uneconomical production runs, which reduced their cost competitiveness on export markets.
- With imports expected to double between 1960 and 1970 in quantity terms, the industry would have to increase its exports at least five fold just to maintain existing production levels at the 1960 level.

One means of boosting the level of capacity utilisation would be through a programme of amalgamations throughout the industry which would result in lower overheads, economies in marketing and purchasing of yarn requirements, thereby improving the competitiveness of Irish mills overseas.

However, the recommendations of the Fitzgerald and Quinn Report failed to get widespread approval from the industry. This has been attributed to.

- The high level of family ownership in the industry and the consequent reluctance to give up control of their firms.
- The very localised and traditional presence of a mill as a large employer in areas of little employment opportunity.

s ufficient und sons of the explosions on the solution of the solution of the solution for accommend preduction with the test cash field of the cash field of the solution of the solution of the solution for accommendation of the solution of the solution

VARTER CONTRACTOR AND ADDRESS DERIVERS 1980/2000 ESZÜLER ERMENTERELLER INCLUTES CONTRECTORS CONTRACTORS EXCERDED IN THE FORE DREAM CONTRECTORS OF INCLUTES CONTRECTORS CONTRECTORS EXCERDED IN THE FORE DREAM CONTRECTORS OF INCLUTES CONTRECTORS AT THE TREE REFERENCE.

The masked of backung the laws at copy dy afficiency would be broak, it is a stroky is a reconstrated of amother abone theory into a sectors industry when twick to be interesting eventsede of theorees is marketing and own? Each of year reconstration, thereby market at the instruction was a closed will construct to.

r torde Aro, for on Anone edutions of the Margerskinend Clutter Report 1986 of a get wheten each of neoret instantise evaluary. They have been adaptated for

. The sight is set of severating is here reducing the here reducing and the pressentation. Resultations of the resonance of the sectorization

The Applications and backlanel a recents of a space a large coupling at several lifter empirement chance sho Reservations about the effect such rationalisation would have upon the specialisation of production, especially in the higher quality segment which would come under severe competition from industries in other countries that adopted a similar policy of producing up-market fabrics, in the face of increased competition from the low cost countries.

This point was touched upon by a supplementary report upon the power weaving sector compiled by the Committee on Industrial Organisation (1964).

In the transition years, between 1968 and 1978, some twenty significant woollen and worsted manufacturers ceased production and 3,445 jobs were lost (representing 47% of employment) in what had traditionally been regarded as the backbone of the Irish Textile industry. These changes in the structure and nature of the industry took place against a background of totally changed trading relationships where Ireland, as an EEC member was participating in multifibres arrangement (MFA) negotiations.

During this time, the Irish woollen and worsted sector was coming under increasing pressure from the synthetic sector. Help went in disproportionate measures to attract manufacturers of synthetic fibres to Ireland with the result of mill closures. In 1979, the European Commission sent a letter to the Irish Government requesting no further state aid in the next two years towards increasing capacity in the synthetic fibre industry. Similar letters were sent to the other member

Record with the shoots the offect sock table of each and the second would have upon the spectro sampe of production especially in the register and the segment which each dot to involue events compression from thous the segment of the ridge of the social poly of producting upon series have up ther active up the research ridge of the social poly of producting upon series have up there active up the research

sections less real and more enclosed.

Late processa constraid crison by a debridum maary report report for movem in terms. Recess countries by the Committee in Follows at Oxyan autors (1084)

In the control of the case fails and the Case, we work any the total and the total and the case of the contract of the case of the case

governments. The EEC were obviously aware of the difficulties caused by over capacity but unfortunately the Industrial Development Authority (IDA) in Ireland felt that this should not interfere with their extensive programme in the synthetic fibre field. The IDA supported numerous projects such as Asahi, the Japanese company that set up at Killala and Ballina, also Snia Ireland, the Italian group, which was established in Sligo. Numerous cash grants went into these foreign companies while Irish based companies went into closure.

[Cork Examiner, 29th August 1979]

By the late 1970s, the woollen and worsted sectors began to enter a pronounced phase of declaration, while synthetics continued to expand, and yet the IDA recognised the industries potential for growth as highlighted in an Irish Independent article:

For the first time the new plan outlines the IDA sectoral approach to the type of industry which offer the best potential for growth. It is committed to completing the target sub-sectors for special emphasis during the coming years are.... selected areas of the textiles sector.... [Irish Independent, 6th April 1978, pg.6]

The IDA also recognised that Ireland could not compete with the mass produced cheaper products from developing countries. Between 1973 and 1976 imports of textiles into the Community increased by 80%. In 1976 the value of those imports rose to more than £5 million.

By the full of MAR the subman and whether second regent to strend a prosequence proved of leader should be rejudictice condensed of an product and yeld we UNA entropy took the industries paramited for proveing as regaring theory, we have leaders and

chail a

To 15.4 a to impossible in a factorial outside of complete foron outside models and states. States to for facts (mappies or complete sources) Seconds (10.5 and 10.5 models) intrakes to be Complete increased by 60% or models of the cases of these requeries to a formation of the Complete. As a result of those growing imports, 3,500 European factories have had to close down between 1973 and 1976 and half a million jobs have been lost 15% of the total work force in the sector.

[Cork Examiner, 29th August 1979]

The IDAs' solution was to invest in high technology, high value added and high skill industries. Ireland began adopting the methods of the rest of Europe. European textiles were already technologically more advanced yet still unable to counteract the increasing import penetration of textiles from developing countries. To avoid this, the EC introduced measures to limit the imports of cotton fibre and clothing from certain non-community members.

As already mentioned, many companies found it difficult to survive, yet some of Irelands top companies did, and continue to survive. When we examine what companies have survived we note many common factors that have ensured their survival. We see that they are mostly entirely family owned. They are geographically dispersed throughout the country and many are traditionally apparel based and have high export content of sales.

In a lot of the cases that did not survive we find that generally these mills were vertically integrated mills, where everything involved with producing a finished fabric was carried out on the premises. This resulted in high sampling costs with low turnovers.

As a real 4 or these proveing timber at 3,500 European featurize have as (1,1,0) deservant (1,2,0) face down to prove (1,1,0,0) d 1976 and call a militon (obs. mostlev.co. (car. 1375 of free four level record to a visition (Work Explanation (2017) substituting

For the Astronomer and the Markov median and the second presence of the Astronomic Property and the activity activity and the activity activity

Above were a real-metric schou contractor (contractor contractor) (Space) he consider per vecco ter hereader con active state shall read to the contractor of the second read states and the contractor of the contractor state actives states and per fill the contractor for the contractor for the second to the contractor contractor state actives the states of the contractor for the contractor for the contractor of the contractor of the contractor state interview and the contractor for the contractor of the contractory states active active interview and the contractor for the contractor of the states of the contractor states in the contractor for the contractor of the contractor of the states of the contractor states in the contractor of the contractor of the contractor of the contractor based to active the filter active in the contractor of the contractor of the contractor of the contractor of the based to active interview of the contractor of the contractor.

e renelly integra ea net constant averyming in research produkting a faviliteur. Serie was contest out on the premises of the resonance on the cost with They also became very dependent on agents, which meant that customer relations were poor and customer loyalty wasn't great. Another problem that was evident was that these mills were subject to rapid changes in product life cycles and were unable to keep up with growing market trends.

In Chapter 2, I will discuss one success story within this declining industry, that of Botany Weaving Mill which has established a world-wide reputation as a producer of high quality upholstery fabrics for a diverse range of interiors and to increasingly demanding specifications. Therefore it will be worth discussing the factors that ensured the survival of Botany.

In assessing the development potential of the Irish woollen and worsted industry, it is obvious that its development was greatly influenced by what happened at a European level and prospects for the 1980s weren't great. In fact by the early 1980s there was evidence of an increasing reluctance on the part of the IDA to continue to develop textile production in Ireland. There was less investment placed into textiles as a whole, in comparison to the manufacturing sector as a whole. In their Annual Report of 1980, the IDA expressed certain fears with regards to the expansion of the textile industry:

...planned investment in textiles might continue to decline in relative importance...investment in the sector should at least continue to reflect its relative importance in manufacturing industry. [IDA, 1980, pg. 18]

• Chatters P. Constructors are set attracted attractive study with an attractive providence in the excitation of the

Element intrinsion development of the first of the Aren and Lemino Material devices intervention and the construction of th

pla trad investored in terra as alght entites. Is de Jata or relative imprification e vesta ent Pro antiar shakit er instellation et a rellaci the efsitive importance in machines. Int

- [61 - 66 - 9494 - 447

Therefore, by the end of the seventies, concern about the level of commitment to the Irish Textile Industry as a whole was already articulated. There should have been a more balanced programme of investment where the synthetics sector should not have been developed at the expense of the woollen and worsted industry. In 1960 there were approximately 6,046 people employed in the woollen and worsted industry whereas figures compiled in 1996 show that there were 1,126 employed. It should be acknowledged that this employment decline is a continuing trend established after Irelands entry into the European Community in 1973.

With Irelands membership of the EEC two main forces had definite bearings on Irish Textiles. These were both internal and external forces. The internal impacts included harmonisation of taxation and technical standards and the removal of European border barriers. As far as Ireland is concerned, the issue of transport costs is especially important. As a peripheral island, Irish exports have further to go; therefore Ireland should enjoy large gains from the abolition of border controls. There are at present very few national level technical product standards which limit European Community trade in textiles, although in the case of Botany Weaving certain standards concerning flammability are present, but that will be discussed further in Chapter 2.

The main external impact on the Irish textile industry is the growing possibility of free circulation of goods between the EC and ultimately the world. With the evident unstable situation of the Irish woollen and worsted industry a surge of low-cost

*** * *** arche subjectivité or wasile vero replágient population de parte and **** *** arche de stabel progromme di investitana sette en est parte est de enactification e costabel progromme di investitana sette est peus de la vorre endet d'arche e costabel est da especie est area donte de la vorre endet d'arche industry est arche simplicit é ideo arche- est population est est endet d'arche industry est arche de activité ar 1980 est proendet d'arche industry est arche de activité ar 1980 est proendet d'arche est arche est est arche de activité ar 1980 est proendet d'arche industry est arche est arche de activité ar 1980 est proendet d'arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est est endet d'arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est est est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est est arche est ar

¹ The country is an of the EHC is control there is a reference to a setup of the setup of t

The main orthographics and include industry industry is the providence of using the base of the set grouts between the EC and direct to the state of the train to react the state of the state of the state of the state.

imports from developing countries could pose a serious threat to what remains of Irelands industry.

The long term future and health, the competitive standing of the Irish woollen and worsted industry must ultimately depend on the saleability of the products being manufactured in the mills. Thus, the market appeal of Irish fabrics, determined as it undoubtedly is by the aesthetic, physical and end use characteristics of these fabrics, is of paramount importance in any analysis or discussion of the industry. o mbru inter do rempiter constituies bouid is ansi de service diners, co un director o al Perio sur e subitsuis

(1) A second the matching of the control of the

CHAPTER TWO

Botany Weaving Mill, a case study


CHAPTER TWO

Within this chapter, I will discuss the success of Botany Weaving Mill and the factors that have ensured its survival to date within Irelands diminishing woollen and worsted industry.

Botany Weaving Mill is based in Dublin, located in what is called the "Liberties" area of the city. The mill was formed in 1934 by Mr. James Hackett, who has since passed away. It is now probably the largest and longest established mill of its kind in Ireland occupying a 70,000 square foot facility in Dublin. The company is privately owned by the Hackett family.

The company sells into three main market areas, uniform fabrics representing 15% of sales, contract furnishing fabrics representing 45% of sales, and aircraft upholstery fabrics representing 40% of sales.

Up until 1986 uniform fabrics constituted the majority of the company's' sales. As a percentage, this figure continues to fall. Uniform fabric production is characterised by high volume; low margin fabrics and Botanys biggest customer would be British Airways where they supply all their woven fabric needs for female staff uniforms.

Botany has sold into the Contract Furnishing Fabric market since 1985 with the USA accounting for the largest geographic share of this product area. Botany sells

bours y Marea og a Risia da og 2 akiet, och a Stakiet och sig och ed sjor Klimotes 3. de offiser og politik for over af an och sig for and a solar solar solar for verto efter sen 1. see for senerof, och solar produktiv solar socks and a for senerof for verto efter sen 2. de offiser a generative for the packabile solar socks and a for solar can be the set officer set 2. de offiser a state for the for the set officer seneration of the set of the set officer set officer set officer 2. de officer solar state for the for the set officer set of the set of the set officer set officer set officer 2. defter solar set for the for the set officer set officer of the set of the set officer set of the set officer set of the set officer set of

The one was ease and tanke main reaches the react of the private reacting to the one end of the conservation tended react services for the private service on the service of alconenias tended react services for the private service on the large structure representing AD to of a set as

a barrende de de la secondaria de la secondaria da companya de la secondaria da companya da secondaria da secon De la deservación de la degradaria de la defensa de la de la de la develocida de la develocida de la develocida De la deservación de la develocidade de la develocidade de la develocidade de la develocidade de la develocidad Persona de la develocidade de la de

Contrar i vas upid finito tare Coordinato Pusto-Pustop Pastala masikut sinato 1986 (valo Bile 1984. auto-atroine far Prin Jahosak assocratione arte de Lias problem anela - 6 etecherasis

ORGANISATIONAL CHART OF BOTANY WEAVING MILL



Fig. 2.1



to all the leading wholesalers in the States including Designtex, Maharam, Unika Vaev, Larsen Textiles, Pollack and Associates and Sina Pearson Textiles. They also sell to a number of leading office and Contract Furniture manufacturers including Knoll, Donghia and Herman Miller Inc, who are their single largest clients in the USA.

Botany also entered the Aircraft Seating Fabric Market in 1989 following enquiries for the supply of aircraft seat fabric by GPA Group, now known as GECAS. They now supply some 20 airlines world-wide including some of the most respected carriers operating. These include British Airways, Qantas, Cathay Pacific, Virgin Atlantic Airways, Aer Lingus and Britannia Airways.

Of course, all these developments in Botany occurred after in-depth research into each prospective market. In 1984, Jonathan Hackett (MD) began this research, in particular, into the US Contract Furnishings market. At that time the size of the total market was estimated to be worth US\$4 billion. The all-wool segment of this market was believed to be worth US\$217 million in 1984 and has grown at a rate of approximately 10% per annum.

Trends of design and colour developments in furnishing fabrics are becoming more fashionable and following apparel fashion colours more closely. Reliable estimates predict that room furnishing fabric colours will only be eight months behind apparel fabric colours. ins a trigg fraction of the same with the fraction bestroky in Basic const. We are also to the Marco fraction is the state of galaxies and set and set and the state of the state of the state of the set of the set of the same track of the **State** set of the set at tracking the state of the state of the state of the fraction of the set of the state of the **State** set of the set at tracking the state of t

Balance and a constant of the Constant Separate probability and a constant of the Sector of the Constant for one are station and the constant angle for SPA Sector of the American Sector of the constant material angle are of the test work beaches in the Sector of the American Sector of the constant of the angle of the test work beaches in the Sector of the American Sector of the constant of the angle of the test work beaches in the Sector of the American Sector of the constant of the angle of the test work beaches in the Sector of the American Sector of the Sector of the American Sector of the American Sector of the Sector of the American Sector of the Sector of the American Sector Sector Sector of the Sector of the Sector of the American Sector of the American Sector Sector Sector of the American Sector Sector Sector Sector of the American Sector Sector Sector Sector Sector of the Sect

(3) Sources en l'oracias responseras en l'organs en la climiter (e descricteres succes) en la conditativa de la condi

Therefore of against and endpoin the endprin state on annihiltary. It is don and the second on the faithbacking and faiths, and endpoints that back and and a state and a strategies. Revisible and a case a such that there targets a faithback britished and state and a strategies. The second as a strategies and a an such that there targets a faithback britished and state and a strategies. The second as a strategies and a s There is also a trend towards better quality and more use of wool. Wool gives the appearance of safety, comfort and prestige, the major drawback being one of handling. However specialist finishing can largely eliminate this problem.

The US upholstery fabric market consists of two major types of customer:

- Jobbers: these are wholesalers who market the fabric under their own name throughout the market.
- Furniture Manufacturers: they design and manufacture furniture and select cloth with which they will market the furniture.

Jobbers are believed to hold 65% of the US\$217 million wool furnishing fabric segment of the US Contract Furnishings market. Of five leading firms and in terms of sales volume, they rank in order of size.

1. Maharam

2. Designtex fabrics Inc.

3. Architex

4. Arc-com

5. Carnegie

Competition would mainly arise from suppliers other than those from the US. Both furniture manufacturers and jobbers have found that the majority of US mills are

ियत्य प्रस्तुतः वैदितम् हिन्देश्वर्थभविः हिन्दुन् वद्यतेष- उत्ततं भवनुत्वतित्तिन् वित्तन्त्वत्व व नही व्यत्वद्य द्रस्तीन् यर्म तः त्वद्यः मिन्द्री असी साम्राज्य किंत दिन्दी वियन्ति

unit indef veragined

oment in a substantia series and based subditions states that the solution of the US - Bo

unwilling to accept the low-minimum re-order quantities demanded by them. Furthermore, high minimum order requirements restrict the variety of both colours and designs available.

The principle European competitors in the US market would be Great Britain, Ireland, Germany, Switzerland and Italy.

It should be said that for European mills, this is a relatively new market. Traditionally, the mode of entry into the market has been to use an agent. However, the more successful firms in recent years have tended to sell direct.

This trend is becoming increasingly apparent as firms seek to gain greater control over their relationship with clients and to cultivate this, firms aiming for the highest end of the market will usually have a greater proportion of jobbers than furniture manufacturers amongst their customers.

Mr. Hackett found that there were numerous opportunities for Ireland to expand into the US Furnishing Fabrics market. He found that Irish mills have the capability to serve a niche of the US upholstery market which American mills are largely not interested in serving.

Mr. Hackett also felt that the majority of Irish mills have the production flexibility to produce a wide variety of fabrics for an increasingly sophisticated segment of the

, une troj te controls deventaren gun munitaris gonnisaris divertanded (m. here) 1973 - La pier, frigit anteren ovor et reactestistels fasteci. Be yarlely of helh dolocus

To Province on the momentation in the US manual movin be fateral Britans. Events Germany, A electrospo and taly:

, protector to paint the control of the pages in this filter is a casebreak motion that the starts for First of the light in a sector of antiby scientifies intensive from its each to take to again. Hereactive, the events excloreded of frees in respect signifies have remark to and no again.

Reserved assessment of the reserved assessment as the descent of the second states of the second se second seco

> 다. 그렇게면 밖법을 다시 한다고 있다. 다 2011년 3월 2011년 2011년 2011년 2011년 1911년 - 2011년 - 11월 2011년 - 11월 2011년 2

jala Hoakoff tri on ered dioos retra numeriense option" i dise on teen-retra mytoend onto fine 195 from o lata, Camerico neerool - Hardon solate tri dotti milita anvar (Camusanitic for omvarta elektra o die 153 egit o dotti mitiativa solati com controlati addicato frances (Ca

market. This segment of the market continues to grow by 10% per annum which should ensure good profit potential for competent suppliers.

Jonathan Hacketts research on the US upholstery market was undertaken with the purpose of investigating key purchase criteria and attitudes of buyers in the market. He found that delivery time was ranked very highly amongst furniture manufacturers and minimum order quantities was rated highest amongst jobbers.

With regard to the use of agents, over two-thirds of the respondents in the US market research said they would prefer if their suppliers did not use agents. This was one of the most significant findings of Mr. Hacketts research given the very high regard which agents are held in by the Woollen and Worsted Industry. Reasons cited for such a high rejection level included the lack of design knowledge amongst agents, also they inhibited the development of a close relationship amongst buyer and supplier which Botany feel is so essential for continued growth and innovation.

As already mentioned, probably the greatest problem facing the woollen and worsted industry in Ireland is that of competition from low cost countries. A strategy with which Botany realise, to counteract the onslaught of competition from low cost countries is likely to be linked to a reduction in costs and also differentiation and the creation of switching cost barriers to avoid direct confrontation.

23

string of the solution of the second of the book back back back of the solution of the solutio

Non-negator in the taxe of the sector of the excellations of the sector of the tax is the 199 of the constraint sector is the sector of the taxes of taxes of the taxes of tax

As an order to any out the two to be the tendent accord. To the Constraint was an applied induction of Astances the Order to Select frame as a contransplet of the select with the following contrast of the constraint of the constraint was to the state of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the constraint of select where the constraint of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the constraint of the constraint of the constraint of the select of the select of the constraint of the constraint of the constraint of the select of the select of the select of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the select of the constraint of the select of Cost reduction strategies are based on investment in new technologies, subcontracting and outward processing. The main differentiation barriers are founded on the promotion of uniquely designed products, such as aircraft seating fabrics, (examples of which can be seen in Fig. 2.12) backed up by a commitment to quality and a high level of service together with a more focused investment in marketing and greater integration into distribution.

In some cases it can be in the interest of manufacturers to sub-contract certain elements of the processing, to specialised units of production. For example, Botany weave and sub-contract out spinning and finishing activities. This allows them to concentrate more upon product development and marketing.

A mill which has a weaving only operation is able to choose form a variety of specialist yarn spinners and fabric finishers. The mill not only benefits from their economies of scale and specialisation but it is also able to bargain amongst them to obtain a better deal. Also, it is able to adapt itself more quickly and with far less cost to changes in customer performances thereby enhancing its flexibility and responsiveness.

However, there are of course a number of disadvantages associated with a weaving only operation such as Botany, particularly due to its location in Ireland.

24

In the set of the Kone basic fields are spectral factors in a spectral fractional descent of the public set out to describe a standard state of the field energies. So and there is not not to back of the energies with field of the field of the Solar set out of the contract of the energy and field of the energies.

A real which such a substance with operation is which a capacity form a solution of contracted state substances and fairs. Providence which a cale with the base and from their empartmented of roots and a contract state that is a state action to best aim of the state. The state of herein is a solution with the contract of the energy action to best aim of them. Hereinstein the two states are taken to at the energy action to be of the energy and the states of herein a state of the contract of the energy action to be state of the energy of the states of herein a state of the states of the states of the energy action to be the state of the states of herein a states of the states of the states of the energy of the states of the sta

Maximum lifete are of counsels used as a second as report second rate of the only operation uses as Bound contract control of the to be bound to the test of the coercities used as Bounds, control of the to be bound to the second control operation. Due to the large reductions in the number of woollen and worsted mills in Ireland, the sub-supply sector has also shrunk proportionately. Consequently there are limited spinning and finishing facilities that could handle the type of work that the majority of Irish mills would require. Therefore, mills such as Botany look to Britain, where there is a pool of large and small-scale commission yarn spinners and finishers. Purchases from this area entail the loss of control of a significant amount of total costs outside the country and such costs are subject to inflationary rates.

Botany found that in the upholstery market, a mill could create value by a number of factors.

- Being flexible with regard to production.
- By being able to develop ideas from customers own particular strengths and aid the customer in differentiating itself amongst its own competition.
- By being the major source of new product or design ideas for the customer.
- By ensuring an exceptionally quick delivery turnaround time for orders.
- By allowing low minimum re-order quantities to customers at a competitive price.
- Guaranteeing its commitment to the market from initial development until a worthwhile return in terms of re-orders is forthcoming.

Another problem facing Botany and the Woollen and Worsted industry as a whole in Ireland is employment figures. Botany has found that the amount of potential workers is shrinking. It will continue to shrink quickly as the size of the 17 year old Consideration of the providence of the muster of ecoder and warked make in address in a sub-array sector has use should provide crouter creater. Conjustered in the same limited with the and tracking non-alter that could be the instructor in the measure of all fractions and the start of the instruction of the instructor of the measure of all fractions and the start of the instruction of the instructor of the measure of all fractions and the start of the instruction of the start of the measure of the start of the start of the instruction of the start was started and of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the start of the start of the start of the instruction of the start of the instruction of the start of the

Botany found und in the supposedity meridely a sublim and energy sublices of a public of factors. Of factors

हर्मी के देवरे के निर्देशन में सिंह से दिखा चुके थी। के

ne modeline fant fal likkelen i ne uite finnel jeken in streken in streke fan mêd witere en

al and a state of a state state of the state of the

and an an and the second and a second s

18 J. 1.

 Dentre asserting für nammännar inte fre madval frage office. Da ansen mit eine fi som beide met en befäns et es mas et af fasteredetet.

Contrast considere passing Biot and stand and in a Masseer and Waterstein and any or a subtrainer of standard by material by week a Bayeriy assumed in the Break Waterstein Argunation (and the sub-standard by material by week and the sub-standard by a standard by passive of the ender of the standard of the Bib above bayers are to be an or the standard by the standard by passive of the ender of the standard of the Bib above bayers are to be an or the standard by the standard by passive of the ender of the standard by the Bib above bayers are to be an or the standard by the standard by the ender of the standard by the Bib above bayers are to be an or the standard by the standard by the standard by the standard by the Bib above by the standard by the Bib above by the standard by the st age cohort decreases from approximately 72,000 now, to approximately 50,000 in 2006 and as participation in third level and further education continues to improve.

Competition to employ people is also intensifying as the service sectors, such as Retail and Tourism expand and as increasing numbers of light assembly operations are established by multinational corporations in Ireland. The woollen and worsted industry generally does not have as positive an image as the newer high-tech industries. And yet Botany has continued to secure high production levels regardless. The workforce in all facilities are represented by one Trade Union and to date the company has a strike free record.

The future outlook for Botany is a very positive one. They anticipate that sales to the airline industry will account for at least 50% of their sales by the year 2000 and their objective is to increase total group sales to IR£10 million. They are committed to serving the specific fabric design needs of airlines and aircraft manufacturers by providing a level of design and colour innovation which exceeds that of their competitors. By using the latest CAD systems available both in their own in house design facility and that of their design consultants, Weaveplan, Botany can offer the complete design package whereby the designs and colours can be co-ordinated together.

The Woollen and Worsted Industry in its development over time has become specialised by process rather than by area. This is to say that the specialist

26

n de la presidente de la seconda de la contra da la contra da la contra da seconda da seconda da seconda da se En la terreta de la contra da seconda da contra

Normality of the entremy deads to related theory (the solution of the entremy conducts) of an analysis.
Recall and the first threads the experised on a participation of the entremy of the ent

The follow relation to the two by rouge to runk we can be seen in the antipopping of runk of the part of the part of the second fille of the secon





emphasis has been on function rather than on specialist end product or market niche. From examining Botany Weaving Mill, it is evident that their continued success stems from their unique specialisation into an area, which pushes them to provide a unique design package to customers. Mr. Hackett feels that in order for the industry to survive, individual firms have to re-evaluate how they organise their internal activities to enable them to provide a unique package to customers. The absence of qualified design personnel among marketing staff all require remedial attention if companies are to successfully segment their different markets. a of extra the event of of the containing of a statistic and product of the statistic of

STAGES OF PRODUCTION WEAVING WITHIN BOTANY WEAVING





Initial stages of production weaving. The warping area of Botany Weaving Mill





Fig. 2.4 Close up of reed where yarn is threaded through onto warping machine





Fig. 2.5 One of the Dornier Jacquard looms





Fig. 2.6 Back view of Jacquard loom





Fig. 2.7 Greige Perch inspection where faults are marked for mending





Fig. 2.8 Finished goods inspection area




Fig. 2.9 Finished rolls ready for shipping





Fig. 2.10 Storage area



SINA PEARSON TEXTILES





VIRGIN ATLANTIC AIRWAYS

5

BRITISH AIRWAYS

And huise a liture

QANTAS

Fig. 2.12

AER LINGUS



CHAPTER THREE

The Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry in relation to European and World Textile Markets



CHAPTER THREE

Consumption of textiles within the EU is approximately static, or even falling, as can be seen in Fig. 3.1. This is partly because large parts of the clothing industry have moved out of the EU in recent years, to locations with lower labour costs.

Textile industry output has fallen slightly faster than consumption, as the balance of trade has changed; moving the EU from being a net exporter of textiles in the late 1980s to a net importer now, with the excess of imports over exports continuing to grow year on year.

With output falling and significant gains being made in productivity, EU employment in textiles is also decreasing, and is now less than 1 million, as can be seen from Fig. 3.2.

For many decades, world trade in textiles and clothing has been governed by the Multi-Fibre Arrangement (MFA), which has restricted trade. Its main thrust has been to limit imports into developed countries from developing countries with low labour costs. The stated objective from the start has been to give industry in developed countries time to adjust, while moving gradually towards free trade.

Until the Urguguay Round of talks regarding trade was concluded in 1995, trade in clothing and textiles were excluded from GATT, the main international agreement

A SHE RETAILS

Construente a **officiali**ties within film ED is **application** behavior between provident of the case has well the **Equilities** of 1716 a strugglight handling hanglight parties of the clubbilities matching has ward out of the ED in comprovident (or the Min is rate) to a club clubs of the clubbility

Textile incitation and a fillen slightly respected consensation on the beautopert water has been and moving the first form balling a second of the line of the 1930a comparison with the existence of a second construction of the construction of the text of the construction of the first existence of a second construction of the construction of the

Mila da kut biliteg end sian kasal goins Greng maalo kupetig Sibi ensbiren entrin aarbier is soot demesting, and is new reas fran 1 antion, as cen ba soon bras Fig. 8.2

(c) many decontact, not of the term textiles and more ing that been covered to must blue of the electropy ended the fit of the decoles and the logarity of the more decay to back in the line of the terms developed does the finance of the coveraper, and the electropy backet of an in the fit of the other line man file out interim terms to give on the terms to developed as at the line terms of the line reaction from out interiments of the terms of the developed as at the line terms of the terms of the start interiments of the terms of the developed as at the line terms of the line.

el abase color e el color de la sear activit polatagen e del tri broccie e color del color de la color de la co Antecesaria de la color de



Fig. 3.1 EU production, consumption and trade in textiles



Fig. 3.2 EU employment in textiles



on trade. The Uruguay Round led to many changes in a number of areas including the creation of the World Trade Organisation (WTO) which was to govern and enforce the GATT agreement.

One of the most important changes was an agreement that the MFA would be dismantled. Each participating country was to liberalise products representing 16% of 1990 textile/clothing import volume immediately in 1995, a further 17% in 1998, 18% in 2002 and the remainder in 2005. In addition the quotas remaining after each step of liberalisation were to be increased by 16% in 1995, 25% in 1998 and 27% in 2002. In line with the requirements of the Single Market, EU quotas have been pooled. Decisions about scheduling liberalisation are being taken collectively at European level.

It is not clear that the MFA is still of any great practical benefit to the Irish textile sector. There have been significant increases in imports of textiles and clothing into the EU since 1993. However, it is not clear to what extent they have been due to changes in the MFA, and to what extent they are driven by other factors such as moves towards outsourcing or relocation of operations to low labour cost countries, the dismantling of import barriers between the EU and Eastern Europe, and improvements in the capability of companies in countries with low labour costs.

Moreover, there are significant benefits to the textile sector associated with the ending of the MFA. As import barriers into the EU have been reduced, import

e en 1934 en 1935 e Banavan, 1937 og Baki fandsk op dreenge spele e oppfilker en engen de Luis e en 1935 estaten of Baki Maryin Foorte (1955), sette fan 1977 (1955) este fan en foorte en en en frederinge de sette state ante en foorte (1955), sette fan 1977 (1955) este fan en foorte en en foorte en en

Present California Contractive encorpages - Inclusive operating and the Contract operating California Calif

In a non-use institute to the trade of any gravity consister constraints to the constraint office. These mass there are a downing to cause and infinite of the trade of information and the trade office. These serves it is made classical watch constraints of the trade of information and the trade office. The event of the made classical watch constraints in the trade of the office can be trade itself. The importance is is made classical watch constraints in the trade of the office can be trade itself. The importance of the provide sector can be classical to the conserver of the trade office of the trade of the provide sector can be classical to the trade of the office of the trade office office of the provide sectors to the classical can be income of the cause of the trade office office of the trade of the classical to the classical can be income office. The trade office office office of the trade office of the trade office office income office can be the cause of the trade office of the trade office of the trade office income office office office office office office office of the trade office office office office income office office office office office office office office of the trade office office office office office income office income office offi

24 ADV 4011 THREE TOP 1 (PROTECRED IN TRANSPORT OF BUDGED REPORT OF PROTECTION OF MALE AND ADV 15 ADV 15

barriers into other countries have also been reduced, allowing Irish companies to increase their exports globally. Exports to outside the EU from Ireland have gone up by about half since 1992. This is greater than the rate at which exports from the EU as a whole have increased.

There are reports from Eurotex, the main EU Textile and Clothing Industry organisation among others, that some countries have not reduced their import barriers to the extent agreed under the Uruguay Round and are unjustifiably obstructing EU exports. This is potentially a significant issue for parts of the Irish Industry.

A further benefit to the running down of the MFA is that, some Irish Mills have benefited from cost reductions associated with the running down of quotas on yarns.

With 53% of exports going to the UK, the Irish woollen and worsted industrys capability to compete with UK competitors has a significant impact on its success. During 1997 and early 1998, sterling appreciated significantly relative to other EU currencies. The major effect on the Irish textile industry was to improve its competitiveness relative to the UK. A secondary effect, however, was to raise raw material cost for some companies buying through sterling with some negative impact on their competitiveness.

noverse units armon novelbade futhe existence to contract our statement, interview on the measure to contract their experition (probation state) of the termination to a built of the statement measure protecwith by who is part intervented as if the restricted from the resize of a form on the statement. Figure and on protection to the restricted of the restricted from the resize of a form on the statement.

Examples reports here the complete catalogs of Disators and Distributy Andreig and the complete conservation that is a set darge one states and recorded the monoplation between at the entrement of the conservation of the catalog Nature of and an energy of the data construction of the entrement of the catalogs and the catalogs of the construction data construction of the set of the set presentation of the states for peaks of the form data construction.

स्थल है है सिर्फ के प्रियम के साथ के साथ के साथ है से दिया है के लिए से प्रियम के साथ के साथ के साथ के साथ के इसके साथ के स इसके साथ के सा

And SC of environments in the UN, the new outer and the static terms in the set of th

Textile companies are highly vulnerable to such currency movements particularly because their profitability tends to be low, leaving little margin to cover currency risks.

At the end of October 1997, the European Commission published a Communication entitled "Plan of Action to Increase the Competitiveness of the European Textile and Clothing Industry". This Communication is the first EU-level plan of its kind for any industrial sector. It is the outcome of an extensive programme of research and consultation with industry and unions, which commenced during 1996. The primary objective of the Communication is to further improve structural adjustment within the industry, while giving all due attention to the problem of employment.

The Communication put forward five main priority areas for action by businesses, employers associations and trade unions, national and community public authorities. These are:

- Jobs and training
- Development and the dissemination of new products, methods and equipment, of communications and information technology in the sector.
- The proper operation of the internal market, while ensuring a high level of protection for consumers and the environment, should not place new obstacles in the way of the free circulation of goods.

The ends of the particles and the first **denotes and fits a**utor of the explority of the presentation of the explored by significant or end officer for data to be fitted at the ends of the strangen fits of the context subscription and significant or end officer for data to be fitted at the ends of the strangen fits of the context subscription

Where emained and a set of the State State on the engages and the engages and the state of the set of the s

Vitas Contrinuir Presidur Mut Prekeran suveranasın previdir, ar tasış for archine bir beldenadaran Berindayında basıdar ultar organi ürseler terilmesi, naladın i araş erdendişiyi gatalat Addementar - Reese ara

전 관람이 있는 것이 모양하다.

(** class settigend the descentration of all real conducts the blocker activity back in class was added and information related by a markact.
(** class was added and information related by a markact.
(** class constrained of the interval method within any cast, and a class is a class of the class and information of the interval method.

- Access to the markets of third world countries and strict compliance with the rules and disciplines, which have been freely accepted under international agreements.
- Regional development must involve giving special attention to viable firms located in less-favoured areas of the union.

In addition to the other factors listed, the Communication argues that particular attention should be given to "the transfer of technologies", "the use of information technology" and "the promotion of synergies between Community and National programmes in order to maximise the results".

At its meeting on 7th May 1998, the European Council welcomed the Commissions initiative in adopting the Bangemann Communication, and agreed that it was the role of the public authorities to develop and maintain adequate framework conditions for investment, for the creation of new enterprises, and to allow existing enterprises to become more competitive.

The Bangemann analysis of the EU textile sector rings true also in relation to Ireland. We have already discussed that employment has decreased significantly. As with the industry elsewhere in the EU Ireland has both competitive and uncompetitive firms. Some of Irelands major firms qualify as the most competitive, or among the most competitive, in their chosen markets, as is Botany Weaving Mill.



The priorities identified by Bangemann are also relevant to Ireland. Modern production technology is important to competitiveness and well-applied information technology is important.

Market access outside the EU is also a significant issue, with 15% of textile exports going outside the community.

Bangemanns approach to training is also relevant to Ireland. There would be many advantages to the introduction of new qualifications to ensure that new entrants to the industry get a good foundation to reflect the reality that the textile industry and, in particular, the woollen and worsted industry, requires significant skills.

As a firm increases its international involvement, it will gradually acquire, integrate and use knowledge about foreign markets. In the case of the woollen and worsted industry here in Ireland, members have lacked both knowledge and resources to such an extent as to constrain their degree of commitment. Lack of knowledge in that they had become accustomed to protection in the domestic market for so long and lack of resources in that traditionally they have had to serve a very small and diverse domestic market which in many cases proved to be uneconomic to sustain all firms in the long run.



Following Irelands entry into the EEC in 1973 and with the removal of import tariffs, as already discussed, the industry was forced into exporting to make up for the surge of imports which where stealing domestic market share. Consequently, mills embarked upon an attempt to sell their diverse range of products to a large number of markets attempting to differentiate themselves from international competition by their ability to undertake short production runs.

Such diversity, however, forced the mills into dependence upon agents on international markets. Such a dependence upon agents would suggest a definite lack of planning and organisation by the mills in satisfying the needs of the end customers. This can be largely attributed to the small size of the domestic market and consequently the urgent need to develop exports almost overnight in the early 1970s. Such adversity lead to a disjointed decision-making mode which would be characteristic of the reactive stage of the internationalisation process.

If the internationalisation process is to be understood fully, then obstacles to further international development should reduce in importance through incremental decision-making and learning about foreign markets and operations. Success will require modifications of product, service and procedure, which can only come about through selective focusing, and treatment of distinctly different product markets.

In the end of the second sector (the EEC) is 4800.3 and the character of the conduct of the conduct of the second s second se

• Provide a first increases to and the activities and to the electronic or a constraint of the second states and the second to the address of the tribust of the second states and the second states and the second states and the second states are seco

¹⁶ the internation consistent processe is to be understated with their application of a constraint intersections. Development display reduces and annotation in particles and drawness and been and been and sectors in the sector of the end of response. De to be with a new strock forum of movies, method and sectors and pronations through relative tools by method and prolater of through relative tools by method and prolater of through relative tools by method and the sector termination and the and the sector of movies, by method and the sector of the sector of through relative tools by method and the sector of the sector of through relative tools of the sector of the secto As M.F. Bradley states:

there is an obvious danger in public policies which encourage firms to become exporters before they are adequately prepared for such a step, so that they represent a high risk of early failure or temporary withdrawal from international markets.

Irelands course of action should be to consider the priorities identified by the Bangemann Communication which as stated include attention being paid to:

- Modern production technology
- Market access outside the EU
- Bangemanns approach to training
- Promotion of synergies between Community and National programmes

In particular, the Bangemann Communication really emphasises the necessity of continual training within the industry. This could really benefit Ireland with regard to existing skill development approaches. Bangemann have already planned an initiative to examine training requirements within the Textile sector, an area that Ireland really needs to address.

그 말 아는 것 같아. 한 것 안 한 것

Data Baran a Sono (Charlogan Charles) and gament A Anta Araba Sono (Charlogan Charles) and a Sono Anta Barana (Charlogan Anta) and an Anta (Charlo Anta and Barana (Charlogan) and Anta (Charlo Anta and Pathy Anta) (Sono (Charlogan) and Anta (Charlogan) (Charlogan) (Charlogan) Anta (Sono (Charlogan) (Charlogan)

energia en ban managen en ante de persona de persona en processa en entre en entre entre entre entre Antes en carte en contacte entre de persona de persona de la contacte entre entre entre entre entre entre entre

n por la Amilia Bangeorana Clauria de la companya Clauria de emperandos tital na recención e de la francia graditio tra Andriana (1514, pour Handrig Gameric Gameric Gameric) e la companya de la catalogneoría (1511) e la general materia de la catalogneoría (1511)

readers i construites prefer

CHAPTER FOUR

Future for the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry and the factors that could influence the direction the Industry will take



CHAPTER FOUR

Within this chapter various factors will be discussed that could have a specific influence on the future of the Irish Woollen and Worsted industry. I will highlight the importance of computer-aided design and also the role of the designer in the future of the Irish Woollen and Worsted industry. Co-ordination within the industry itself is also essential with greater co-operation and amalgamation between the existing companies that have managed to survive.

If Ireland is to survive in a competitive environment with industries using very advanced technology, consideration must be given to developing existing technology and giving back up support by providing access to existing research and development activities that are happening throughout Europe.

In the past twenty years, we have seen primary investment put into new industries such as Engineering and Pharmaceuticals. With regard to textiles, synthetics have received substantial grant aid, which exceeds the adaption grants given to more traditional sectors, such as the woollen and worsted sector. These adaption grants were essential in assisting these industries to modernise their premises and equipment and therefore improving productivity. By the early nineties, with increasing labour costs and an increasing rate of import penetration from developing countries such as Africa and Asia, efforts to improve every area of the woollen and worsted industry have become a necessity.

With the chapter valuate field is with the case as addition found there was a service of a service of the found to the service of the service of the found to the service of the servic

¹ Massers with recorden a completition as a contract, with a stratise code contractive code contractive contr

In the proof mean econe we we we geten a set of a settiment part of the mean fromework corrected and mainteening and settimentations. With the part of the tables, nontrained and the description of the effective and and the restriction grantee given to mean incide once we does work as a settiment of the effective states are used. The activity and the entry examples are does by the effective and an effective restriction of the activity and the effective restriction work as a settime of the entry of the effective restriction of entry examples are accessing to the effective restriction of the effective restriction of entry and a settime restriction of the entry of the entry of the case of the effective entry of the effective restriction of the case share to be the definition of the entry of the effective restriction of the entry of the restriction of the case of the entry of the effective restriction of the entry of the effective restriction of the entry of the effective restriction of the case share to be the does not be case of the case of the entry of the effective entry of the effective restriction of the entry of the effective restriction. In-depth research into all aspects of the industry is seen as a possible method of establishing a competitive advantage over the textile industries of the developing countries in Africa and Asia. Since 1993, there have been significant changes in the location of the textiles industry that supplies the European markets with notable increases in the volume of imports from Eastern European countries, such as the Czech Republic and Hungary, also form India, Pakistan, China and Mauritius. It has become evident that these countries have managed to make major improvements in their use of technology and along with very low wage rates, they have an overall advantage over the more developed countries, and have proved so by penetrating the developed markets. This situation will become even more exacerbated in the coming years with the possibility of world trade liberalisation.

Environmental awareness throughout the world has increased dramatically within the last decade and there have also been some interesting developments in the attitudes of consumers. Consumers are better educated, more informed, wealthier and aspire to certain lifestyles. There is, in effect, a disdain of synthetic and a drift from anonymous mass marketed products. This in fact should be advantageous for Irelands Woollen and Worsted industry.

Unfortunately, when Ireland initially invested huge sums of money into synthetics, Europe was already realising that high technology man-make fibres were simply not enough to stem the flow of cheap mass-produced fabrics from developing countries. European textiles were already searching for another alternative.

In Courtement of the deceder of the trainer way a service of the conductor decement of the courtement of the courteme

Unter la costa o actente la barra la monta de la costa de la ba 11. La costa de la tetada estadente la teta de la costa de la co 11. La composita de la ferencia de la costa de la tetado de la costa de la costa de la costa de la costa de la c 11. La composita de la costa In a recent visit to Paris, I attended Premier Vision, one of the largest fabric trade fairs in the world. Since its establishment in 1973, Premier Vision has grown from strength to strength with ongoing emphasis on creativity. It has developed and flourished serving as a framework to a fruitful exchange between European weavers and buyers from all over the world. It was very encouraging to find that four of our countries top fabric manufacturers had exhibits among the very best in the world. Emblem Weavers, John Hanly and Co., Magee Weaving and John McNutt Textiles. Fortunately for Irish weaving mills, trends for the new millennium have forecasted that wool will "sail skilfully into the year 2000".

> Winter 2000 means wool..... but this season Premier Vision weavers have endowed wool with every power of seduction... sometimes with the look of boiled wool through brushings and treatments.... Wool that reaches it's zenith in cashmere, in all it's traditional aspects or completely modern, yet always sublime! [Le Journal, Premier Vision, 3rd October 1998]

The fibre exhibition evoked the traces left by fibres over the years highlighting the importance of natural fibres. I found that this was paramount throughout the whole exhibition. Finishing and after treatments were also a big issue. Buyers where looking for "new qualities, sophisticated handles and finishings" [Jim Stocks, head of technology at Marks and Spencer]. Vittorio Montagna said that he wanted to give "a technical spirit to pure wool" in his collections.

Ironically, FAS and the IDA had identified that the natural fibres sector was a sector with great potential for development and that if any growth was likely to take place it was likely to be in the woollen sectors. FAS stated that: "It is imperative that
In a recent visit to Paris 4 muscless Promise Control on a Paristic Action Editor (1899) Lange of the control of Paris (2) appreciation of (2012) Press, a Paris (2) and a Paris (2) strategrade and a presson of the strategies of parises on construction (2). It has the available factorismed an elements in the strategies of parises on construction (2). It has the available area on area is a from element to the strate (1) and construction (2). It has the available area on area is a from element to the strate (1) and construction (2). It has the available area on area is a from element to the strate (1) and construction (2). It has the area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of a paris (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) area of (2) and (2) and (2) area of (2) and

> Werder 2000 Halder Hondel. Michael das das eine Processor Mentin werdening kann andrakker social with an eric prosekt of andraker. Britan Aria eiff ong their (Erichell andre unaugh britan age and most harrisk. Or (Erichell socialized for a solar in cash or social andre (Erichell andre) age age ages of our ophical (Erichella andre). Of the argentic (Erichella andre (Erichela)). Or (Erichella andre). Erichella (Erichella andre (Erichela)). Or (Erichella andre). Erichella (Erichella (Erichela)). Or (Erichella andre). Erichella

The fact a sumplify the vectors the tradescief opticity opticity over the court of Highlery and important is in usible cluster. Cound that this was patient to and much such the second the birde of classify and the case are second and and second to and the second before from the definition of the case are second to a track of the patient before from the definition of the case are second to a track of the patient before from the definition of the case are second to a track of the patient before from the definition of the case are second to a track of the patient or worked the track of the case because in the court of the track of the patient also for the metal second to the case of the court of the court of the track of the second also for the metal second to the case of the second the second to be the court and also for the metal second to the case of the second to be the court of the track of the track of the also for the metal second to the case of the second to be the court of the track of the track of the second to the track of the track of

int manifyt i i els Brand (See als Armael Site Milled (ment), er netter af filteter sventer veen stor te stran enfilt, generatereter fektions vertetter of protection i filtera gravitar met foreig ter toga please transk Monto foretter Dan Franke ver forter. Filter glesterd for to filt aregenerative filter Ireland researches these areas where we have a historically respected background". [FAS, Dublin, 1993]

Unfortunately, the potential for Irelands Woollen and Worsted Industry was not realised in the early sixties when there was a real prospect for growth.

As stated previously, I found that finishing and after treatments are essential if Ireland is to compete with the best of European textiles. At present there are very limited finishing facilities located in Ireland. Charona Finishers are located in Kilmainham, Dublin and finish the majority of Botany Weaving Mills fabric. Fortunately for Botany, their fabric requires very standard finishing procedures and Charona are equipped respectively for these standard finishes. The machinery Charona use is very dated and when problems arise, parts are very difficult to come by for repairs. Irish textiles cannot hope to develop competent research facilities into fibre blends while development into already existing finishing plants is lacking.

Computer aided design is an easily accessible method of developing the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry. As of yet, there are no comprehensive computer design courses for textile designers in Ireland, and training in computer aided design (CAD) will become increasingly essential over the coming decade. It is evident that young computer literate textile designers are having a great influence on the development of the textile industry throughout Europe.

lastand nerver norm there paters when any nerver is in a mandally reapeded. The support of the first interior fields:

kiesko katolo katolo pronesiti ini lo ben kolumente lainteine end elentikon molo on vesk entr 19 resetteri o and serie doches of an itis na origina e real data datis doch for datore.

As use or matrices y it found that Booshing and other Bookers is pre-presented of the static is to competer with the best of Baceurus Leurus (As present there are noty familed of static families to get the feature of Baceurus (Feature) is even a second of familed of static families to get the response of Bookers (V comp., 100, 19 to 190, 40, not of significant from the test for a second of Bookers (V comp., 100, 19 to 190, 10 to 10 to 12 there is a feature for a second are grant to 10 for the second of the other and the second to the second of Bookers (V comp., 10), 19 to 190, 10 to 10 to 10 to 10 the second to the second of Bookers (V comp., 10), 19 to 190, 10 to 10 to 10 to 10 the second to 10 to 10

Complete served data groups on passify accrete playmethod of processions, rower op-Victorian and Websied Industry of a solution action of complete and the complete and the complete design coldination to the data strong and instance of a matter action of design (CAE), will be code to the set of the establish data by the particular of a state of (CAE), will be code to the set of the estate of the late of the control of the control of the transport to the set of the state of the late of the control of the control of the transport to the set of the state of the state of the control of the control of the state of the state of the state of the state of the control of the control of the state of the stat A survey of fabric design in the Irish Textile Industry was compiled in 1984 by a Mr. Pat Dalton, senior training advisor in the textiles sector of ANCO (now FAS). Many interesting facts arose from this survey and in particular with relevance to the position of Irish Colleges in comparison to British Colleges. In 1984, twenty designers were employed in the Woollen and Worsted sector, seventeen of which were British College graduates. 60% of designers employed were trained at the Scottish College of Textiles, Galashiels. Botany Weaving Mill employs two graduates of Galashiels.

Mr. Dalton found that, in general graduates from the National College of Art and Design "will not be perceived by the industry and particularly by the Woollen and Worsted section as a source of recruitment for designers, due mainly to the lack of technological base in their training".

As a weave student in the National College of Art and Design this statement is certainly not encouraging, considering little has changed since 1984. Recommendations made by Mr. Dalton were that a working party of the Textile Industry Training Committee be set up to examine the findings of his survey with objectives such as examining the situation in which Design graduates of the Irish Colleges are not perceived by the industry as being a source of designers, and to determine if there is a solution in helping to bridge the gap between their art based training and the technological requirements of the industry. It was also suggested,

(4) Better in the true of the second graduates from the forecast bound of the second bound of the second of the

As a virtues of victors of the Exception Contexport Contexport Coadyon the Exception of the Section of the Exception of the Section of the Se

that there be a further study initiated to examine the implications of computer technology for the fabric design process in general.

This would seem to indicate that as future professional designers Irish Textile students need to be adequately educated. This necessitates the filtering of computer research through to Irish design colleges faster than has been happening.

Further to the Dalton Report a similar study was carried out in 1993 by McIver Consulting for FAS, with a subsequent action plan carried out in October 1993.

The recommendations of the 1993 Textile study were:

Formation of a Textile Action Group whose primary purpose would be to drive the implementation of the study. Unfortunately there was a lack of demand from the industry. It is believed that the absence of such a group and of any other dedicated implementation structure, has most likely contributed to a lack of momentum in addressing the issues raised by the 1993 study and in implementing its recommendations. Another factor that may have taken away from the momentum is that the report was published when the industry was still distracted by the sterling crisis of 1992 and 1993, and that the amount of funding available was less than proposed in the study.

Other recommendations outlined proposals for action to be taken by FAS, Eolas and the IDA to promote the adoption of world class manufacturing (WCM). FAS (i) the choice of the departmentation of the interview of the structure of the structure

t unit au fontre Dialton Biographie aljmilet eludio unter courted optico 1952 bio Monaec Group de 1948, metrie a antregioner, esto e durci cercels que ta O meteor 1913.

¹⁷ El consuméter defense de prime 1981: Tractica acude canée d'antection data Tautaia notion (Coque se caso primero) methode securité les se devel fant les paramentacion de la croudy. Conservative desense a cole de developed toon de electrose de la case o ed l'hai des reportes de sub-la genue and the exp offets developed in planuemoniano el caso de la caso de la caso developed offets developed in planuemoniano el caso de la caso de la caso developed de caso de la case de sub-la caso de la caso de la caso de la caso de la caso developed offets developed in planuemoniano el caso de la caso developed in planuemoniano de la caso de la caso

Cost e-contenendations automod proposition for contenent affect by FAR, Bodgel and No. 12.3 to promote the encodiment storid class contenent of FAR. did undertake a number of world class manufacturing related activities in the form of a national conference, which took place in November 1993 and workshops for management were organised. A world class manufacturing video for the textile sector has been developed but final editing packaging and duplication has not been completed to date.

Another recommendation proposed a marketing training programme for Textile Company managers, comprising of five, two and a half-day workshops. Two attempts were made to implement this programme. On each occasion the programme had to be called off due to lack of interest shown by the industry.

A recommendation was proposed for a specialist postgraduate Design Programme to develop textile design students to make them suitable for employment as designers in industry. A year long programme was conducted once, catering for three graduates, one of which worked with Botany Weaving Mill. Training took place in FAS, Jervis Street and in the Scottish College of Textiles at Galashiels and in company.

The industry view obtained was that the programme had not turned out to be satisfactory. They felt that the main reason for this was that textile designers in industry need a strong practical knowledge of technical textile design, and that a period of years, rather than weeks at Galashiels is the best way to develop this.

Discussion of the second second second second second solution and the second second to the second s second s second se Second s Second seco

A reaction of a management providence of the management of a many reacting many reaction of the Weyling Countries of the subgement coverpancies of the many reaction of the sector of the sector of the sector of the s substrategies of the sector of the sector many reaction of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector programment user of the contribution of the sector many reaction of the sector o

An interprocession and any programment in the processes of the entropy of these spinstry of the property of the entropy of

(1) The root of the completation is the couplities on granuous onto not connect mutual to the second set of the set

FAS reported difficulties in implementing the recommendations of the 1993 study. They felt that the funding available was inconsistent from year to year and was insufficient, as highlighted in Fig. 4.1. Also, there was a low level of take up on certain programmes by textile companies, particularly marketing programmes.

Year	Total Grant Value	Value as % of Total TSS Budget for All Sectors
1993	£114,000	4%
1994	£132,600	3%
1995	£368,900	7%
1996	£413,700	7%
1997	£252,000	7%
Total	£1281,200	

Fig. 4.1 Value of Training Support Scheme Grants to Textiles Source FAS

In October 1998, an additional study was compiled by McIver Consulting for FAS which was an updated study of the Textile industry. The report highlights various factors that will influence the future of the Woollen and Worsted Industry in Ireland. They found that the Industry faces a number of labour market problems mainly due to the fact that the amount of potential workers is at present shrinking, as increasing numbers of young people enter third level and further education. It will continue to shrink quickly as the size of the 17-year old age cohort decreases from approximately 72,000 now, to approximately 50,000 in 2006.



Employment
5,799
5,580
5,370
5,167
4,972
4,784

Fig. 4.2 Employment Forecast for Textile Sector

As already discussed, competition to employ people is also intensifying as the service sectors such as Retail and Tourism expand, and as increasing numbers of light assembly operations are established by multinational corporations in Ireland. The textile industry generally does not have as positive an image as the newer high-tech industries.

While forecasting the future of the Industry in Ireland, the consultants of the McIver Report expect three main factors to combine to produce a fall in employment in the sector. Although some of the biggest company closures that threatened in 1992 have since taken place, they feel it is likely that closures will continue. They can see that some companies will increase their sales and some will continue with approximately their current sales levels. It is assumed that the net impact of company closures and output trends is that the sectors output will increase at about 2% per annum. Also, productivity will continue to improve.



The updated McIver study presents numerous recommendations, some of which suggest that FAS support training programmes that are chosen by the companies themselves. They also highlight the importance of support for the Bangemann Communication and its 'Plan of Action to Increase the Competitiveness of the European Textile and Clothing Industry' as discussed in Chapter 3. Of course the experience of implementing the programme of activity set out in the 1993 textile study bears lessons for the implementation of the recommendations of this update study. It is to address these lessons that the study set forth certain proposals about implementation.

They suggest that FAS should form a cross-regional team to implement the programme chaired by an industry specialist. The team should initially plan the implementation of the programme and should then meet regularly to review progress and adherence to the priorities set out.

Personally, I feel that if the textile industries involved are not taking an interest in these recommendations, not much can be done to develop the existing industry. Judging form past programmes many factors caused them to be unsuccessful but I feel that if the recommendations set out in the McIver Report are followed maybe some progress will occur. In some cases, I feel that Irelands protectionist, insulated background has contributed to the industrys inability to recognise outside influences and also in working together more and developing good relations between all existing Irish companies.



Little attempt has been made in this chapter to highlight that there are strengths within the Irish Woollen and Worsted industry. It has the possibility of being a vigorous and vital sector of our economy. An attempt has been made here to focus on areas of weakness or of potential weakness with a view to making recommendations on points of technology, marketing, development and education, where changes will be necessary if we are to provide a competitive industry. By addressing these problems we can certainly ensure the future prosperity of the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry.



CONCLUSION



<u>CONCLUSION</u>

The impetus behind this research into the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry was to provide an insight into how it can strengthen itself to move forward into the new millennium by creating a sustainable competitive advantage.

Within the first chapter of this thesis the primary economic policies and decisions which have had depressing effects on the growth of the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry since 1914 were discussed as a background to the current state of the industry. I highlighted the fact that by the end of the seventies, concern about the level of commitment by the IDA to the textile industry as a whole was already articulated and that there should have been a more balanced programme of investment where the synthetics sector should not have been developed at the expense of the Woollen and Worsted industry.

The subsequent examination of Botany Weaving Mill was intended to provide an example of one success story within the industry and to highlight factors that have ensured their survival to date. From this examination of Botany, I found that their continued success stems from their unique specialisation into an area that pushes them to provide a unique design package for their customers. In general, the industry as a whole in its development over time has become specialised by process rather than by area. The emphasis has always been on function such as apparel or furnishings rather than on end product or particular market niche. Through intensive research into potential markets and by re-evaluating how they



organise their internal activities Irish Mills have the potential to be highly competitive within both domestic and international markets.

Chapter three looked at Irelands situation in relation to European and world markets. I discussed factors that may help Irelands Woollen and Worsted Industry as well as European and world industry, but also decisions that were made that may have caused the closure of so many mills. I found that in order to further Irelands internationalisation progress, we need to address the domestic problems first. In looking at past examples, the industry was forced into exporting to make up for the surge of imports and the mills were not ready for this move. I feel that the Bangemann Communication as discussed in Chapter three will be of great relevance to Ireland and that its Plan of Action to increase the competitiveness of this industry is a big step forward if the five main priority areas for action are dealt with, these being:

- Jobs and training
- Development and the dissemination of new products, methods and equipment, of communications and information technology.
- The proper operation of the internal market.
- Access to the markets of third world countries and strict compliance with the rules and disciplines.
- And finally, regional development.



My final chapter of this thesis discussed the numerous factors which I feel will have a significant bearing on the future of Irelands Woollen and Worsted Industry. I highlighted the fact that graduates from the National College of Art and Design would not be considered for employment as designers in the industry due to the lack of a technological base in their training. There is a definite need for Irish colleges to look at the existing specialist third level courses and to examine why graduates of Irish colleges are not perceived by the industry as being a source of designers. There needs to be a solution to bridge the gap between the art based training and the technological requirements of the industry. The emphasis should be placed on specialised CAD training in textile design. As of yet, there are no comprehensive computer aided design courses for textile designers in Ireland, and the simple solution has been to draft in people from overseas as designers. To underpin the future of the Woollen and Worsted Industry, skill development in design and specialist technology skills are essential. Perhaps the industry should have more input into the training of textile students so as to ensure their suitability to industry.

In compiling this information, I feel that the decline of this industry was, and still is, the decline of companies that did not consider the many recommendations made by the numerous reports that were written with the intention of saving this diminishing industry.



If Irish textiles are to make an economically viable contribution to the European and World markets these recommendations need to be carried out, these being:

- Support by FAS for training, chosen by companies.
- Priorities for Training Support Scheme.
- National Traineeship Programme.
- Inward Investment in Textiles.
- Support for Bangemann.
- Innovation and Co-operation.
- An Integrated Development Strategy for the Textile and Clothing Sectors.
- Contingency Funds for Training Interventions.

The key factor that will differentiate quality Irish fabric from those of European and World textiles will be the promotion of unique, specialised and individualistic Irish fabric.



BIBLIOGRAPHY



BIBLIOGRAPHY

- BRADLEY, M.F., "A public Policy for International Marketing", <u>Journal of Irish</u> <u>Business and Administrative Research</u>, Vol. 5 (2), October, 1983, 57-75.
- Central Statistics Office, "<u>Census of Industrial Production</u>", Dublin, 1948, 1949.
- Central Statistics Office, "Census of Industrial Production", Dublin, 1958-1960.
- Central Statistics Office, "<u>Census of Industrial Production</u>", Dublin, 1980.
- Central Statistics Office, "Census of Industrial Production", Dublin, 1984.
- Central Statistics Office, "Census of Industrial Production", Dublin, 1996.
- Committee on Industrial Organisation, "<u>Report of the Woollen and Worsted</u> <u>Industry</u>", Stationery Office, Dublin, 1964.
- Committee on Industrial Progress, "<u>Report on the Woollen and Worsted</u> <u>Industry</u>", Government Publications Office, Dublin, 1972.
- DALTON, Pat, "<u>A survey of Fabric Design in the Irish Textile Industry</u>", AnCo, 1982.
- DORGAN, Val, "EEC plea on synthetics", Cork Examiner, 29th August 1979.
- <u>Euratex News</u>, Newsletter 11, Special Issue on the Bangemann Communication (http://www.euratex.org/publications)
- FAS, "Manpower and Training Study of the Textile Sector", Colm McIver Associates, 1993.
- HACKETT, J.P., <u>The development of a long run, sustainable Competitive</u> <u>Advantage for the Irish Woollen and Worsted Industry</u>, 1986.



- Industrial Development Authority, "<u>Report of Irish Textiles Industry</u>", Dublin, 1976.
- Industrial Development Authority, "<u>Report on the textile Industry in Ireland</u>", Dublin, Confederation of Irish Industry, 1980.
- Institute for Industrial Research and Standards, "<u>Report on a technical survey of</u> <u>the Irish Woollen Industry</u>", Dublin, 1967.
- Irish Independent, 6th April, 1978 pg. 6.
- Le Journal, Premier Vision, 3rd October 1998.
- LUCAS, A.T., "Cloth Finishing in Ireland", <u>Folk Life Journal</u>, Vol. VI, Thanet Press, Margate.
- McIver Consulting, "<u>A Textile Industry Update Study</u>", October 1998.
- MITCHELL, Lillias, Irish Spinning, Dyeing and Weaving, Dundalgan Press, Dundalk, 1978.
- MITCHELL, Lillias, <u>Irish Weaving, Discoveries and Experiences</u>, Dundalgan press, Dundalk, 1986.
- O'HAGAN, John, <u>The Evolution of Manufacturing Industry in Ireland</u>, Dublin, Helicon Ltd, 1981.
- PACEK, Jasmina, <u>An analysis of the role and position of education in the</u> development and application of CAD/CAM system for textile design, 1994.
- RUSSELL, Aideen, An examination of the nature and scope of the woven textile industry in Cork, 1996.
- SUTTON, E.F., Weaving the Irish Inheritance, Dublin, Gilbert Dalton Ltd. 1980.

